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2024 12

4,654,704 .56 55.0
742,986.00 8.8
651,326.00 7.7
543,424 .57 6.4
343,178.50 4.1
340,130.00 4.0
250,217.50 3.0
499,269.79 5.9
436,123.26 5.1

8,461,360.18

( 833 ) 100.0

2024 12

NATWEST MARKETS PLC

5.0546 | 2025/8/12 | 650,000 | 99.84 | 648,964.01 | 100.2 | 651,326.00 7.7
/AUD/ REGD REG S MTN

COMMONWEALTH BANK

4.2000 | 2025/8/18 | 600,000 | 99.78 | 598,705.28 99.8 598,782.00 71
AUST /AUD/ REGD MTN

BPCE SA /AUD/ REGD

2.0000 | 2025/6/5 550,000 | 9852 | 541,842.82 98.8 54342457 6.4
REG S MTN

KFW /AUD/ REGD MTN 2.1500 | 2025/8/25 | 550,000 | 98.62 | 542,421.61 | 9861 | 542344.00 6.4

CREDIT UNION AU LTD
/AUD/ REGD V/R REG S 5.9976 | 2026/10/23| 500,000 | 101.08 | 505,407.07 | 101.17 | 505,840.00 6.0
MTN

MEMBERS BANKING GRP
LTD /AUD/ REGD V/R 5.6651 | 2025/5/23 | 500,000 | 100.13 | 500,635.51 | 100.16 | 500,805.00 59
MTN

INTL FINANCE CORP

4.0000 | 2025/4/3 500,000 | 99.88 | 49937747 | 99.85 | 499,269.79 59
/AUD/ REGD MTN

BRISBANE AIRPORT CORP

3.9000 | 2025/4/24 | 500,000 | 99.67 | 498,329.27 | 99.68 | 498,420.10 5.9
/AUD/ REGD REG S MTN

NATIONAL AUSTRALIA

2.3500 | 2025/2/25 | 400,000 | 99.75 | 398,983.25 | 99.65 | 398595.22 4.7
BANK /AUD/ REGD MTN
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NORFINA LTD /AUD/
10 25000 | 2027/1/25 | 400000 | 95.08 | 38031270 | 95.85 | 38339200 | 45
REGD MTN
UBS AG AUSTRALIA
1 1.2000 | 2025/7/30 | 350,000 | 9805 | 34317332 | 9805 | 34317850 | 4.1
/AUD/ REGD REG S SER ..
COOPERATIEVE
RABOBANK UA /AUD/
12 35000 | 2026/12/14| 350000 | 9692 | 33921011 | 97.18 | 34013000 | 4.0
REGD REG S MTN SER
GMTN
MACQUARIE BANK LTD
13 |[/AUD/ REGD V/R REG S 5.2565 | 2025/2/12 | 300,000 | 100.05 [ 30015533 | 100.05 | 300,140.66 | 35
MTN
AUST & NZ BANKING
14 |GROUP /AUD/ REGD V/R 51532 | 2025/1/16 | 300000 | 100.01 [ 300,044.14 | 10002 | 30004704 | 35
MTN
KIWIBANK LTD /AUD/
15 54492 | 2027/4/2 | 250000 | 100.12 | 250,294.79 | 100.09 [ 250,217.50 | 3.0
REGD V/R MTN
AUST & NZ BANKING
16 40500 | 2025/5/12 | 250,000 | 10007 | 25018367 | 99.79 | 24948584 | 29
GROUP /AUD/ REGD MTN
MERCEDES-BENZ
17 [AUSTRALIA /AUD/ REGD 5.0000 | 2026/9/26 | 200000 | 99.39 | 19877574 | 10032 | 20064200 | 24
REG S EMTN
WESTPAC BANKING CORP
18 49000 | 2025/11/11| 200,000 | 10061 | 20121537 | 10032 | 20063200 | 24
/AUD/ REGD MTN
NATIONAL AUSTRALIA
19 [BANK /AUD/ REGD REG S 46500 | 2025/11/25| 200,000 | 99.85 | 19970176 | 100.15 | 200306.00 | 24
MTN
MACQUARIE BANK LTD
20 1.7000 | 2025/2/12 | 200,000 | 99.69 | 19938397 | 99.65 | 19929290 | 24
/AUD/ REGD REG S MTN
TOYOTA FINANCE
21 |AUSTRALIA /AUD/ REGD 44500 | 2026/4/6 | 170,000 | 99.47 | 16910626 | 99.75 | 16957330 | 20
MTN
TOYOTA FINANCE
22 [AUSTRALIA /AUD/ REGD 29300 | 2025/3/21 | 150000 | 9958 | 149369.62 | 996 | 14939250 | 18
MTN
2024 12
2024 12
2024 2024 12
10,650,354.28 1,049,059,897 1.0043 99
2021
8,855,369.76 872,253,921 0.9883 97
2022
9,029,108.84 889,367,221 1.0195 100
2023
2024 8,387,162.52 826,135,508 1.0634 105
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2024 8,525,088.38 839,721,205 1.0381 102
2024 8,549,440.20 842,119,860 1.0410 103
2024 8,584,950.86 845,617,660 1.0454 103
2024 8,618,328.22 848,905,330 1.0466 103
2024 8,568,320.10 843,979,530 1.0506 103
2024 8,519,423.45 839,163,210 1.0534 104
2024 8,432,055.29 830,557,446 1.0592 104
2024 8,387,162.52 826,135,508 1.0634 105
2024 8,401,789.63 827,576,279 1.0668 105
2024 10 8,406,878.54 828,077,536 1.0689 105
2024 11 8,434,535.05 830,801,702 1.0731 106
2024 12 8,461,360.18 833,443,978 1.0772 106
2024 12
0.4
2020 24 2021
-1.6
2021 2022
3.2
2022 2023
4.3
2023 2024
100x% +
2020
0.0
2020 24 2020 12
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2021
0.3
2021 2021 12
2022
-0.7
2022 2022 12
2023
4.0
2023 2023 12
2024
4.1
2024 2024 12

2020

100x
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2020 o 13,241,074.00 2,636,036.00 10,605,038.00
2021 (11,341,074.00) (2,636,036.00) (8,705,038.00)
2021 1,383,002.00 2,995,624.00 8,992,416.00

(1,383,002.00) (2,995,624.00) (7,092,416.00)

2022
2022 783,000.00 919,024.00 8,856,392.00
(783,000.00) (919,024.00) (6,956,392.00)

2023
2023 170,910.00 1,140,227.00 7,887,075.00
. (170,910.00) (1,140,227.00) (5,987,075.00)
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2025 29
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2024 8 31
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
AUD AUD
2.2
5 6 7,765,048 764,857 8,607,771 847,865
2.1 1,053,684 103,788 369,096 36,356
2.11 66,127 6,514 42,761 4,212
2.5 13,887 1,368 26,693 2,629
2.4 9 1
104,235 10,267 97,298 9,584
9,002,981 886,794 9,143,628 900,647
2.4 510,025 50,237
7.1D 43,081 4,243 29,604 2,916
35,372 3,484 37,454 3,689
7.1E 17,461 1,720 10,492 1,033
7.18 3,614 356 1,077 106
7.2D 2,133 210 15,679 1,544
7.1C 1,778 175 4,436 437
7.28 1,707 168 1,844 182
7.2F 143 14 154 15
7.2E 72 7 78 8
2.8 2.10 3 12,735 1,254
615,386 60,616 113,553 11,185
8,387,595 826,178 9,030,075 889,462
2024 8 31
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
AUD AUD
FVTPL @
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2.11 351,562 34,629 275,459 27,133
2.11 6 (221) 22) (3,566) (351)
2.2 2.11 6 87,521 8,621 96,329 9,488
2.6 209 21
2.11 6 (©) (€)) 9 1
438,853 43,227 368,440 36,291
7.1D 72,995 7,190 45,665 4,498
7.1A 63,097 6,215 62,889 6,195
28,442 2,802 28,364 2,794
7.2D 25,809 2,542 27,481 2,707
7.1F 25,809 2,542 27,481 2,707
7.18 14,785 1,456 13,567 1,336
7.28 10,323 1,017 10,992 1,083
7.1C 3,118 307 8,921 879
1,213 119 22,984 2,264
7.2E 860 85 916 90
7.2F 860 85 916 90
247,311 24,360 250,176 24,642
2.5 (169, 885) (16,734) (167,734) (16,522)
361,427 35,601 285,998 28,171
2.12 (735) 72) (132) (13)
360,692 35,528 285,866 28,158
FVTPL
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2024 8 31

AUD
2022 8 31 8,887,206 875,390
3 777,540 76,588
2.8 3 (920,537) (90,673)
285,866 28,158
2023 8 31 9,030,075 889,462
3 177,682 17,502
2.8 3 (1,180,854) (116,314)
360,692 35,528
2024 8 31 8,387,595 826,178
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2024 8 31 2023 8 31
AUD AUD
360,692 35,528 285,866 28,158

(5,431,029)

(534,956)  (3,530,655) (347,770)

6,399,067 630,308 3,419,319 336,803
(209) 1)

221 22 3,566 351

(87,521) (8.621) (96,329) (9,488)

(80,794) (7.,958) (32,257) (3.177)

42,779 4,214 77,035 7,588

9 1 ® @

(23,366) (2,302) (2,604) (256)

12,806 1,261 (11,057) (1,089)

(6,937) (683) (13,015) (1.,282)

510,025 50,237 (382,364) (37,663)

! 4,543 447 28,776 2,834
1,700,495 167,499 (253,937) (25,013)

177,682 17,502 928,701 91,477

(1,193,589) (117,569) (909, 185) (89,555)

(1,015,907) (100,067) 19,516 1,922

684,588 67,432 (234,421) (23,090)

2.1 369,006 36,356 603,517 59,446
2.1 1,053,684 103,788 369,006 36,356
328,196 32,327 272,855 26,876

(735) (72) (132) (13)
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2024 8 31

1.
2013 12 2
UBS 1
I
2020 8 28
2020 9 24 2025 8 29
100
2021 2014 1 22
KY1-9005 1 One Nexus Way, Camana
Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
2021 12 6 Csc
100
2022 11 CsC
UBS
UBS
2021 2 15
2021 2 3
2021 1 19
2021 1 18
2021 1 18
AUD $
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2024 8 31

2023 3 19 UBS AG UBS FINMA

AG
2023 6 12 UBS AG AG

AG AG UBS AG

1 AG
AG AG
AG 2024
31

2024 2 1 UBS

2024 3 1
2024 2 28 1l UBS

I
2024 12 10
2.
IFRS
IFRS
4
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 1AS 27 2012

IFRS 9 3

FVTPL FVOCI IFRS 9
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FVTPL
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ii)

SPPI

SPPI

FVTPL
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2024 8 31
ECL S¥ele]
ECL
- FVTPL
. 12
ECL
2023 1 1 IAS 1 IFRS 2
2024 8 31
2023 9 1
2.1
3
2024 8 31 2023 8 31

2024 8 31 2023 8 31
$ 1,792 $ 957
1,051,892 368,139
$ 1,053,684 $ 369,096
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2024 8 31

= FVTPL

2024 8 31 2024 8 31

$ 7,765,048 $ 7,750,679
2023 8 31 - 2023 8 31 -

$ 8,607,771 $ 8,680,923
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2024 8 31
2.3
2024 8
31 2023 8 31
24
2.5
0.90 TER
2 TER TER
2 TER
0.50 0.40%
0.50 0.75 0.50%
0.75 1.00 0.60%
1.00 1.25 0.70%
1.25 0.90%

@)

TER
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2.6

2.7

2.8

(b)

(©

©
©)

TER

2024 8 31
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2024 8 31
1
1
3
2.9
2.10
2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL FVTPL
FVTPL
6
FVTPL
2.12
2063 12 2
1 2024 8 31 2023 8 31

2024 2023
$ 735 $ 132
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2024 8 31
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
3.
1
1 1 1
7 00
7 00
2024 8 31 1
1
$ 8,387,595 7,887,075 $ 1.0635
2023 8 31 1
1
$ 9,030,075 8,856,392 $ 1.0196
2024 8 31 4 69.12  24.09
6.55 0.24 2023 70.80%, 21.45%, 7.16% 0.59%
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2024 8 31
2024 8 31
$177,682 $(1,180,854)
2023 8 31
$ 777,540  $ (920,537)
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
2023 8 31 2024 8 31
8,856,392 170,910 (1,140,227) 7,887,075
2022 8 31 2023 8 31
8,992,416 783,000 (919,024) 8,856,392
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2024 8 31
5.
5.1
A
i
il
2024 8 31 1 1 5 5

$ 5014218 $ 2,750,830 $ -3 - $ 7,765,048

1,053,684 - - - 1,053,684

- - 66,127 66,127

- - 13,887 13,887

- - 104,235 104,235

$ 6,067,902 $ 2,750,830 $ - $ 184,249 $ 9,002,981

2024 8 31 1 1 5 5

$ - % - % - % 510,025  $ 510,025

- - 43,081 43,081

- - 35,372 35,372

; ; 17,461 17,461

- - 3,614 3,614

- - 2,133 2,133

- - 1,778 1,778
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2024 8 31 1 1 5 5
- - 1,707 1,707
- - 143 143
2024 8 31

- - 72 72
- - 615,386 615,386
$ 6,067,902  $ 2,750,830 $ - $ (431,137) $ 8,387,595

2023 8 31 1 1 5 5
$ 6359853 $ 2,247,918 $ -8 - $ 8,607,771
369,096 - - - 369,096
- - 42,761 42,761
- - 26,693 26,693
- - 9 9
- - 97,298 97,298
$ 6728949  § 2,247,918 $ - $ 166,761 $ 9,143,628

2023 8 31 1 1 5 5
$ - % -8 -8 37,454 $ 37,454
- - 29,604 29,604
- - 15,679 15,679
- - 12,735 12,735
- - 10,492 10,492
- - 4,436 4,436
- - 1,844 1,844
- - 1,077 1,077
- - 154 154
- - 78 78
- . . 113,553 113,553
$ 6,728,949 $ 2247,018 $ - $ 53,208 $ 9,030,075

2024 8 31 2023 8 31 50
1
33,557 41,193
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2024 8 31
2024 8 31
%
$ 519,923 6.2%
6,449,832 76.9%
496,945 5.9%
298,348 3.6%
7,765,048 92.6%
7,765,048 92.6%
$ 4,348,063 51.8%
537,845 6.4%
500,356 6.0%
298,348 3.6%
339,875 4.1%
750,600 8.9%
339,122 4.0%
650,839 7.8%
7,765,048 92.6%
7,765,048 92.6%
2023 8 31
%
$ 1,406,708 15.6%
6,905,592 76.4%
295,471 3.3%
8,607,771 95.3%
8,607,771 95.3%
%
$ 4,917,528 54.4%
902,597 10.0%
500,680 5.5%
295,471 3.3%
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324,677 3.6%

1,666,818 18.5%

$ 8,607,771 95.3%
$ 8,607,771 95.3%
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2024 8 31
2024 8 31 2023 8 31 1
77,650 86,078 1
B
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
A 2024 8 31 2023 8 31
2024 8 31
Aaa 3.6%
Aa2 38.2%
Al 32.9%
A2 2.4%
Baal 9.6%
Baa2 5.9%
92.6%
* S&P
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2024 8 31
*
Aaa 3.3%
Aa3 28.3%
Al 34.1%
A2 10.5%
A3 19.1%
95.3%
* S&P
C
2024 8 31 1
$ 510,025 $ 510,025
43,081 43,081
35,372 35,372
17,461 17,461
3,614 3,614
2,133 2,133
1,778 1,778
1,707 1,707
143 143
72 72
$ 615,386 $ 615,386
2023 8 31 1
$ 37,454 - $ 37,454
29,604 - 29,604
15,679 - 15,679
12,735 - 12,735
10,492 - 10,492
4,436 - 4,436
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2023 8 31 1 13
1,844 - 1,844
1,077 - 1,077
154 - 154
78 - 78
$ 113,553 $ - $ 113,553
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5.2

15
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5.3

IFRS

2025 8 29

13

2024 8 31
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2024 8 31
3
u 1
L] 2 1
L] 3
3
2024 8 31
2024 8 31
1 2 3
$ - $7,765,048 $ - $7,765,048
$ - $7,765,048 $ - $7,765,048
2023 8 31
2023 8 31
1 2 3
$ - $ 8,607,771 $ - $ 8,607,771
$ - $ 8,607,771 $ - $ 8,607,771
2024 8 31 2023 8 31 1 2 3
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3
2024 8 31 2023 8 31 3
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2024 8 31
i 2024 8 31 2023 8 31
2
i
6.
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
$ (221) $ (3,357)
(209)
$ (221) $ (3,566)
$ 87,521 $ 96,329
$ 87,521 $ 96,329
7.
7.1
A
3,750 5 0.07 5
0.06 10 0.05 1 2024 8 31
2023 8 31 2024 8 31 2023 8 31
B
0.03
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
2024 8 31 2023 8 31

93/195



31

2024 8 31
2023 8 31
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2024 8 31
D
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
(E)
0.30
2
2
)

0.50 0.05%

0.50 0.75 0.10%

0.75 1.00 0.15%

1.00 1.25 0.20%

1.25 0.30%

2024 8 31
2023 8 31 2024 8 31
2023 8 31
7.2
A
10,000
B
0.12
2024 8 31 2023 8 31 2024

8 31 2023 8 31
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2024 8 31
TER

TER TER

C
5,000
D
0.30%
2
2
)

0.50 0.05%

0.50 0.75 0.10%

0.75 1.00 0.15%

1.00 1.25 0.20%

1.25 0.30%
2024 8 31 2023 8 31 2024
8 31 2023 8 31
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0.01%
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2024 8 31
F
0.01
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
10
2024 8 31 2023 8 31
2024 12 10 2024 9
1 2024 12 10 2,135 30,663
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Statement of Financial Position
August 31, 2024

(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

Assels __August 31, 2024 August 31, 2023
Financial assets ai fair value through profit o loss (Note 2.2, 5, 6) 3 7,765,048 s 8,607,771
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.1) 1.053 684 369,096
Receivables for:
Interest {Note 2,11} 66,127 42,781
Expense reimbursement (Note 2.5) 13,887 26,693
Securities sold (Note 2.4) - 9
Other asseis 104,235 o7 298
Taotal asseis 9.002.981 0,143,628
Liabilities
Payables for;
Securities purchased (Note 2.4) 510,025 -
Professional fees (Note 7.10) 43,081 29,604
Printing fees 35,372 37 454
Distribution fees (Note 7.1E) 17,481 10,452
Custody fees (Note 7.1B) 3,614 1,077
Investment managament fees (Mote 7.20) 2133 15,679
Transfer agent fees (Note 7.1C) 1,778 4 436
Fee agent fees (Note 7.28) 1,707 1,844
Agent member company fees (Nole 7.2F) 143 154
Manager support service pravider fees (Note 7.2E) T2 78
Units repurchased (Mote 2.8, 2.10, 3) s 12,735
Liabilities {excluding equity) 515,386 113,553
Equity (being net assefs atfributable to the halders of redeemabla units) ] §.387 535 $ 9,030,075

The accompanying noles are an integral pant of these financial statements.
1
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended August 31, 2024
(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

Income August 31, 2024 August 31, 2023
Mt incomel(loss) from financial instruments at FYTPL!™Y
Interest income (Nolte 2.11) $ 351,562 3 275,458
Met realized (loss) on financial assets and Rablities at fair value
through profit or loss (Mote 2.11, 6) (221) {3.5686)
Met change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 2.11, 6) B7.521 96,329
Met realized gain on loreign currency transactions (Nole 2.6) - 209
Met change in unrealized (cepreciation)appreciation on foreign
currency translations (Note 2.11,5) (9} a
Total income 438,853 368.440
Expenses
Professional fees (Mote 7.10) 725405 45 665
Administrator fees (NMote T.1A) 53,087 62,289
Organization expanses 28,442 28,3564
Investment management fees (Mote 7.20) 25,809 27,481
Distribution fees (Mota 7_1E) 25,809 27481
Custody fees (Nate 7.18) 14,785 13,867
Fee agent fees (Note 7.28) 10,323 10,992
Transfer agent fees (Mote 7.1C) 3118 8,921
Printing fees 1,213 22,984
Manager support service pravider fees (Mole 7.2E) 860 916
Agent member company fees (Mote 7_2F) 860 916
Todal expenses 247,311 250,176
Expense reimbursement {Note 2.5) {169,885) (167,734)
Operating profit 361,427 285,598
Withholding tax expenses (Note 2.12) (735) (132)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable
to the holders of redeemable units from operations) 5 360,692 5 285,866

"IThis relates to net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVYTPL) including realized and
unrealized gainsi{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, realized gain on foreign currency and
interest income.

The accompanying noles are an integral pant of these financial statements.
2
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{Expressed in Aus!raﬁanbnﬂam}

At August 31, 2022 5 8,887,206
Issue of units (Mote 3) 777,540
Repurchases of units (Mate 2.8, 3) (920,537)
Tatal comprehensive income (being increase in net assets

attributable to the holders of redeemable units from operations) 285,866
At August 31, 2023 5 9,030.075
Issue of units (Nofe 3) 177,652
Repurchases of units (Mate 2.8, 3) {1,180,854)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assels

attributable to the holders of redeemable units from operations) 360,692
At August 31, 2024 § 8,387,595

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended August 31, 2024
(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

Caszh flows from operating activities: August 31, 2024 August 31, 2023
Tatal comprehensive income (being increase in nel assets attributable
iz the holders of redeemable units from cperations ) $ 360,692 - 285,866

Adjustmenis to reconcile comprehensive incomed{loss) (baing
increased(decrease) in net assets attributable 1o the holders of
redeemable units from operations) to cash provided by/{used in)

operating activities:
Purchases of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (3,431,029) (3,530,655)
Proceeds from dispesition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 6,399,067 3419319
Met {payments) from setffement of forward confracts - (209)
Met realized loss on financial assets and Rabilities at fair value
through profit or loss s 3.568
Met change in unrealized (appreciation) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {B7,521) (96.329)
Accretion of investmeants in securities {B0,794) (32,257)
Amortization of investments in securities 42779 77035
Decreasef(increase) in recaivables for securibes sold ] (=)
{Increasa) in recaivablas for interest {23,366) (2,604)
Decreasel(increase) in receivables for expense reimbursament 12,806 (11.057)
{Increase) in other assets (B,937) (13.015)
Increasef{decrease) in payables for securilies purchased 510,025 {382 354)
Increase in oiher payables™™ 4,543 28,778
Met cash provided byl{used in) operating activities 1,700,495 {253.937)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from unils issued, net of change in recevables for unils

issued 177,682 028,701

Repurchases of unils, net of change in payables for units

repurchased {1,193 589) (909, 185)
Het cash (used in)provided by financing activities (1,015,907 19.516
Met increase/decrease) in cash and cash aquivalents 684,588 {234 421)
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of year (Note 2.1) 369,096 603,517
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 2.1) 3 1,053 684 5 369006

Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 3 328,196 -3 272,855
Withholding tax -3 {735) £ (132)

"l Other payables comprise of payables for professional fees, custody fees, fee agent fees, transfer agent fees, distribution fees, printing
fees, investiment management fees, agent member company fees and manager suppor service provider fees as disclosed in the
Statement of Financial Position.

The accompanying noles are an integral pant of these financial statements.
4
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Motes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended August 31, 2024

(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)
1. ORGANIZATION

AUD Short Term Bond Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (farmerly Credit
Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Nl) (the “Trust™), an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed
dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman Islands law. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust
Deed dated August 28, 2020 and executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee®), a trust company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands, The Series Trust commenced operations on September 24, 2020
and will continue until the Final Repurchase Day baing the earliest practicable repurchase day being the earlier af August
29, 2025 or any subsequent date as mutually agreed by the Trustee and the Manager, and the eariest practicatde
repurchase day following the eccurrence of any of the following; the net asset value ("Net Asset Value") being the value
of its total assets minus its liabiliies including accrued fees and expanses) on any Valuation Day is in respect of ALD
Class Units AUD 1,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or thereafter the Manager determines that all of the units of
such class of units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving nofice to all unitholders, or the Trustee and the
Manager agree that all of the units of such class of units should be compulsorily repurchased, each a "Compulsaory
Repurchase Event.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the
Mutual Funds Act (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Mexus Way, Camana Bay. Grand Cayman
K¥1-9005, Cayman |slands.

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company (“CSC™) announced that a conditional agreement had been
raached on a recommended public offer for all issuad and oulstanding ordinary shares of which the Trustea is a whaolly
owned subsidiary. In November 2022, C5C closed on ils acquisition of Intertrust Group.

The manager of the Series Trust is UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formery Credit Suisse Management {Cayman)
Limited}) (the “Manager”"),

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co.
(the “Administrator”, “Custodian” and “Transfer Agent”).

UBS AG, London Branch ("UBS AG") acts as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent”).
UBS Securities Japan Co. Lid. acls as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member Company”).
The Investmeant Manager of the Series Trust is Daiwa Assel Management (Europe) Ltd, (the “Investment Manager”),

The Manager Support Service Provider of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management Co, Lid, (the "Manager Support
Service Provider”™).

Effactive February 15, 2021, the Manager aulhorized Tokai Tokyo Securities Co., Ltd. o acl as a distributor of the units
in Japan. Effective February 3, 2021, the Manager authorized Chibagin Securities Co., Ltd. to act as a distributor of the
units in Japan. Effective January 19, 2021, the Manager authorized Kyushu FG Securities, Inc. to act as a distributor of
the units in Japan. Effective January 18, 2021, the Manager authorized Toyo Securities Co., Ltd. to act as a distributor of
the units in Japan. Prior to January 18, 2021, the Manager authorized Marusan Securities Co., Ltd. to act as a distributor
of the units in Japan. The Manager may appoint further disfributors of the Units in the future (each a "Distributor” and
collectively the “Distributors™).

The Series Trust is denominated in Australian Dollar ("AUD" or “%") and AUD Class Units are also denominated in
Australian Dollar.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to maintain a high degree of liquidity while providing stable incomea by
investing in Austratian Deollar denominated high quality fixed and floating rate debt instruments (the “Australian Bonds”
and those securities selected by the Investment Manager being the “Selected Bonds™). The Series Trust may also hold
AUD cash and AUD-denominated money markel securities (including but not limited to commercial paper, certificates of
deposit and government bills) (the “Short-Term Instruments”, together with the AUD cash and Selected Bonds being the
“Partiolio”).

The Investment Manager shall have day-lo-day investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring responsibility over
tha Portfolio.

103/195



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2024

(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG ("UBS") agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG ("Credit Suisse”) following
intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss Mational Bank and the Swiss Financial Market
Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

On June 12, 2023, UBS Group AG announcad the legal closing of the acquisition of Credit Suisse Group AG by way of a
statutory merger, As a result of the closing, Credit Suisse Group AG ceased fo exist, and Credit Suisse AG became
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG. One of the key steps of the integration is the legal merger of UBS
AG and Credit Suisse AG (the “Parent Bank Merger™). The Parent Bank Merger is a statutory merger by absorption under
Swiss law, whereby UBS AG will be the surviving entity and Credit Suisse AG will cease lo exist upon completion of the
margar. Al this point in tima, in principle, all assets, liabilities and contracts of Credit Suisse AG and its branchas will
autornatically transfer to UBS AG (and its branches as the case may be) by operation of law (in other words by “universal
succession”), As a result, UBS AG will automatically take over all the rights and responsibilities from Credit Suisse AG,
The Parent Bank Merger was completed with effect from May 31, 2024.

Following a Special resolution dated February 1, 2024, the Manager changed its name and is now incorporated under
the name of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited. The Master Trust Deed was revised through a Deed of Amendment
on March 1, 2024,

On February 28, 2024, the Trustee resolved to change the name of the Trust from Credit Suisse Universal Trust
{Cayman) Il to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 11,

The Seres Trust has no exposure related to investiments in financial assets with UBS AG.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on December 10, 2024,

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounling policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set oul below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the pericds presented, unless otherwize stated. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards ("IFRS™).

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the

Series Trust's accounting policies, Areas where assumptions and estimates are material to the financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standard 10, IFRS Accounting
Standard 12 and |45 Accounting Standard 27) (2012) (the Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust
meets the definition of an investment enfity,

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS Accounting Standard 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized
cosl, fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The
classification of financial assets under IFRS Accounting Standard 9 is generally based on the business model in which a
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost or FYVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

i) Itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets o collect contractual cash flows: and,

i} Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments of principal
and interest (SPP1).

A financial asset is measurad at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give nse 1o cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of pancipal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

&
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i) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to both
collect contraclual cash flows and sell;

iii} At initial recognifion, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FWTPL when doing so eliminates or materially
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would ctherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whelher the financial asset contains a contractual term thal could change the timing
or amount of contractual cash fliows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series
Trust considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension features,
- tarmis that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assets (8.9, non-racourse features), and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (8.g. periodical resel of interest rates),
The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:
- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, other assets, receivables for

interest, expense reimbursement, securiies sold and units isswed, These financial assets are held to coliect
contractual cash flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assels at fair value through profit or loss, These financial assels
are managed and their parformance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Series Trust
considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documented investment sirategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
investment strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Seres Trust's management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assels held within that business
model} and how those risks are managed,

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assels to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales
for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's continuing recognition of the assets,

Financial liabilities carried al amortized cost include payables for profassional fees, administrator fees, custody fees, fee
agent fees, transfer agent fees, distribution fees, investment management fees, agenl member company fees, manager
support service provider fees, printing fees, units repurchased and securities purchased.

Impairment of financial assets

The "expected credit loss” (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investment at
FYOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.
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Based on the Series Trust's assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the Series Trust's financial
assels because:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply to such
instruments,

- The financial assets at amortized cost are short-term (i.e. no longer than 12 months), of high credit quality andfor highly
collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assels are expecled to be small.

Changes in material accounting policies

The Series Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Accounting Standard
Practice Statement 2) from January 1, 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the accounting
policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than 'significant’ accounting policies, The amendments also
provide guidance on the application of materality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to provide usaful,
enlity-spacific accounting policy information thal users need to understand other information in the financial statemeants,

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended August 31, 2024:
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual perieds beginning after September 1,
2023 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or amended

standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust's financial
statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with oniginal maturity of three months or less to
be cash and cash equivalents,

Al August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, the Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash equivalents:

August 31, 2024 August 31, 2023

Cash 3 1,792 5 a57
Time deposit 1,051,802 368,138
Cash and cash eguivalents in the Statement of Financial Position 3 1,053,684 3 369,096

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

{A) Classification
The Series Trusl classifies financial assats and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss:
= Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investments in dabt securities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

August 31, 2024 - August 31, 2024 -
Fair Value Cost
Invesiments in debl securities 5 7,765,048 [ 7,750,679
August 31, 2023 - August 31, 2023 -
Fair Value Cost
Investmants in debl secunties 3 8607771 5 8,680,923

Financial assels at amortized cost:
®  (Cash and cash equivalents, receivables for interest, expense reimbursement, securities sold and other assets.
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Financial liabilities at amonized cost:

= Other liabilities: payables for printing fees, professional fees. custody fees, fee agent fees, transfer agent fees,
distribution fees, investmant management fees, agent member company fees and manager supporl service
provider fees, units repurchased and securities purchased.

(B) Recognition/Deracognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party 1o the confractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of invesiments are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the
Series Trust commits o purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights o receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has ransferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when ils contractual obligations are discharged, canceled or expired.

(C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with transaction costs
recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets and [iabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they anse. Realized gains or losses on sale of investments are calculated
using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if any. This is considered o approximate fair value due to the
short-term or immediate nature of these instruments,

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading securitias)
is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for which
market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith in accordance with
procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting change in unrealized gains or losses are
reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E} Investments in debt securities

The fair value 15 based on quoted market prices on a recognized exchange or sourced from a repulable
brokericounterparty, in the case of non-exchange traded instruments, at the Statemeant of Financial Position date without
any deduction for estimated future selling costs,

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assels and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only whan
thera is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
raalize the asset and seftile the liability simultaneously. As at August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, all financial assaels
and liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and therefore
have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.4 Receivables for Securities Sold and Payables for Securities Purchased

Receivables for securifies sold and payables for securities purchased represent frading transactions that have been
contracted for but not yet settied on the Statement of Financial Pasition date. These amounts are recognized initially and
subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of recaivables for securities sold,
A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust will nol be able to collect
all amounts of receivables for securities sold, Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will
enter bankrupicy or financial reorganization, and defaull in payments are considered indicators that the amount of
receivables for securities sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The maximum fees, cosls and expenses (the "Capped Expenses”) that may be deducted from the assets of the Series
Trust attributable to the AUD Class Units is 0.90% per annum of the Net Asset Value (the "TER Cap~).
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The Investment Manager shall instruct the Administrator on a monthly basis to adjust the TER Cap by monitoring the
yield of the 2-Year Australian Government Bond. The TER Cap fee table is as follows:

2-year Australian Government Bond Yields | TER Cap

Less than or equal to 0.50% 0.40%

Abowve 0.50% and less than or equal 10 0.75% | 0.50%

Above 0.75% and less than or equal to 1.00% | 0.60%

Above 1.00% and less than or equal to 1.25% | 0.70%

Above 1,25% 0.90%

Any Capped Expenses of the Series Trust attributable lo the AUD Class Units above the TER Cap shall be borne by the
Investment Manager.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Capped Expenses:

(a) include, without limitation, the Operational Cosis Fees, the Investment Manager Fees, Audit Fees, Formation
Expenses, Distribution Fees, Administration Fees, Manager Suppont Service Provider Fees, Custody Fees,
Agant Member Company Fees, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the Audit Fees and
expenses, annual feas payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trusl o government bodies and agencies,
any insurance costs, any costs relating to the Offering Memearandum and other similar offering decuments and
the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and any taxes relating
to the purchase or disposal of securilies, legal or compensation costs, licensing, tax reporting, anti-maoney
laundering compliance and moniloring, expenses relatad to the economic substance of the Series Trust,
expenses related (o the termination or the liquidation of the Seres Trust, any costs and other charges and
expenses listed in the Offering Memorandum (to the extent such costs and expenses do not constilute the
Ordinary Costs) but excluding litigation and indemnification expenses and any expenses that the Manager
determines o be extracrdinary expenses that have nof been incurred in the ordinary course of business
("Extraordinary Expenses”) and any broker fees or commissions (if any) and any issue or transfer taxes
chargeable in connection with any securiies fransactions ("Broker Expenses”), or that, in the Manager's
determination, relate to the ongoing operation of the Series Trusk; and

(b} exclude the Ordinary Costs, Exfraordinary Expenses, Broker Expenses and any other extraordinary or
unanticipated fees, costs, expenses or liabilities that, in the Manager's determination, would not usually occur.

(c) Extracrdinary Expenses, Broker Expenses and Miscellaneous Expenses shall fall outside of the TER Cap and
shall be paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets of the Series Trust

(d) In the event that a fee, cost or expense does not fall into either paragraph (a) or (b) above it shall be deemed
net o be a Capped Expanse

() The TER Cap is dependent on the Investment Manager fulfilling its obligation to pay the Investment Manager
Expenses. In circumstances wheare the Investment Manager were to default on such obligation, it may not be
possible to maintain the TER Cap which would result in additional fees, costs and expanses being payable out
of the assels of the Series Trust.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

{A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust i5 measured and reported to the investors in Australian Dollars. The Trustes
considers the Australian Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying

fransactions, events and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented in Australian Dollars,
which is the Series Trust's functional and presentation currency.
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(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in Australian Dollar amounts at the date
of valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assels and liabilities, issue and repurchase of units and income and
expense items denominated in foreign currencies are ransiated into Australian Dollar amounts on the respective dates of
such fransactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulling from changes in foreign exchange rates
on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on financial
assels and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The current distribution policy of the Seres Trusl, in respect of AUD Class Unils, is nol to make distributions 1o
Unitholders. Consequently, all the Series Trust's net income and realized capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in
the Net Asset Value of the applicable class of Units,

2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder's option. The Series Trust classifies its pultable
instruments as liabilities in accordance with [AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presenfation. The amendment
requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified as equity where
certain strict criteria are met. Those criteria include:

®  The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;
®=  The puttable instrumeants must be tha most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

= There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation on
the issuer to repurchase; and

=  The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the profit
or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Seres Trust's units have been classified as equity at August 31, 2024 and August 31,
2023,

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Series Trust's total
equity.

Units are camied at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit al the time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trust's equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of outstanding
units. Refer to Note 3 for further discussion.

2.9 Indemnities

The Truslee and the Manager, on behalf of the Senes Trust, enler into certain confracts thal contain a vanety of
indemnifications. The Series Trusl's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown, However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote,

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased
Receivable for units issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Slatement of Financial Position

date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Position date.
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2.11 Net incomef{loss) from financial instruments at FYTPL

MNet income from financial instruments at FYTPL includes realized and unrealized gainfloss on financial assets and
liahilities at fair value through profit or loss and interest income. Net realized gain or loss from financial instruments at
FVTPL is calculated using the first in, first oul method, Met realized gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities at
FVTPL represents the difference between the cost of the financial instruments and its settlement price of the sale trade.

Net change in unrealized (depreciation)appreciation on financial assels and liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference
between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was
purchased in the current reporting period and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Mole & for
furthar details.

Interest income and expense (where relevant) is calculated using the effective interest method and recorded on an
accrual basis. Interest income and expense presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise interest on
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FYTPL.

2.12 Taxation
The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all local income, profits
and capital gains until December 2, 2063, No such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the present time,

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains,
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. For the years ended
August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, taxes wera comprised of the following balance:

2024 2023
Withholding Taxes on Interests 3 735 5 132

The Series Trust invests in securifies domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands. Many of these foreign
countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents including the Senes
Trust. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes
may not be deducted by the Series Trust's broker on a “withholding” basis.

In accordance with 1AS 12 fncome Taxes, the Series Trusl is required 1o recognize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of forgign countries require a tax liability 1o be assessed on the Series Trust's capital gains sourced from
such foreign country, assuming the relevant laxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The
tax liability is then measured at the amount expected (o be paid to the relevant taxation autharities using the tax laws and
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd. There is sometimes uncertainty
about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whathar or
not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax liabilities
management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence the
likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

As at August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability to
racord for any unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents the Manager's
best estimate there remains a nsk that the foreign tax authorties will attempt o collect taxes on capital gains eamed by
the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior waming, possibly on a refrospective basis, and could result in
a loss to the Series Trust,

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Met Asset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the MNet Asset Value of the Series Trust by
the total number of units of the Seres Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of the
Series Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in Australian Dollars.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit. The initial purchase price of units is AUD 1 per unit. All
unitholders must complete a subscription application.
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After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscrplion price. All payments in respect of AUD Class Units must be made in Australian Dollar. The Trustee
may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

Investors wishing 1o subscribe for Units of a class of Units on 2 Dealing Day must send a completed Application Farm 1o
the Administrator by no later than 7:00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the last day of the Initial Offer Period or 700 p.m. (Tokyo
time) on the relevant Dealing Day, respectively, or such other time or times on such day or days as the Manager may, in
its sole discration, determine.

The lotal net assets, units outstanding and net assats value per unit as of August 31, 2024 wera as follows:

Met Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net agsets Units outstanding unit
ALUD Class Units 5 8,387,595 THETOTS & 1.0635

The total net assets, units cutstanding and net assels value per unit as of August 31, 2023 were as follows:

Met Asset Value per
Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit

ALID Class Units ] 9,030,075 2,856,392 3 1.0198

The operational currency of the units is the Australian Dollar.

As of August 31, 2024, all issued units were held by four unitholders, who hold 6§9.12%, 24.09%, 6.55% and 0.24% of the
interest in the net assets, respectively (2023: 70.80%, 21.45%, 7.16% and 0.59%).

Unitholders may transfer their holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Mo transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or unitholder until
enterad into the Seres Trust's register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase nofice requesting to have all or
a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date, Repurchase orders may be
submitted in either the ralevant currency or in units. If such nolica is not in respect of the entire holding units of such
unitholder recorded in the register of unithalders then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase
requirement of 1 unit. Repurchase notices are irrevocable,

Al the time of each repurchase of unils prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased,

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class is paid in cash but may be
made in kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee lo the extent that the Trustee, in
consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is made
by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholder on the same day is made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable currency as
a unitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to such
unitholder. Mo such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution,

During the year ended August 31, 2024, the proceeds from units issued and repurchased were as follows:

Proceeds from units  Proceeds from units
Classes of units issued repurchased
ALID Class Units g 17reE2 % {1,180,854)

During the year ended August 31, 2023, the proceeds from units issued and repurchased were as follows:;

Proceeds from units Proceeds from units

Classes of units issued repurchased
ALID Class Units b3 FITH40 % (920,537)
13
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During the years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, the number of units issued, repurchased and outstanding
were as follows:

At At
Classes of units August 31, 2023 Units issued Units repurchased August 31, 2024
ALD Class Units 8,856,392 170,810 (1,140,227) 7,887,075

At At
Classes of units August 31, 2022 Units issued Units repurchased August 31, 2023
AUD Class Units 8,992,416 783,000 {919.024) 8,856,302

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any circumstances
where the calculation of the Met Assel Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder of such
a suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or Ifted. Subscription applications and repurchase notices cannot
be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase date, as tha
case may be,

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumpfions conceming the future that affect the reported amounis of assets and
liahilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Series Trust may, from time to time. hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are usad
o determine fair values, they are validated and perodically reviewed by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Serles Trust

The Series Trust's aclivilies expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carned out by the Manager under policies
approved by the Trustee.

The Serigs Trust uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risks to which it is exposed; these
methods are explained below.

{A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

Securities held by the Series Trust are denominated in Australian Dollars, thus the Manager believes Ihat the Series
Trust has little currency risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due to direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign
currency rates.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the rsk that prices of fived income securifies generally increase when interest rates decline and
decrease when inlerest rates increase. Prices of longer term securities generally change more in response lo interest
rate changes than prices of shorter term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if short-term or long-term interest
rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series Trust management. When interest rates
fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt
security. The bigger the security’s duration value, the larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given
movement in interest rates may be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

14

112/195



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AUD Short Term Bond Fund
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2024

(Expressed in Ausfralian Dollars)

The following tables analyze the Seres Trust's inlerest rate risk exposure. It includes the Series Trust's assels and
liabilities at fair value, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates,

Non-interest
At August 31, 2024 Up to 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss % S5M4218 § 2750830 & - § - -] 7,765,048
Cash and cash equivalents 1,053,684 - - - 1,053 684
Recaivables for:
InMerest - - - 68,127 66,127
Expense reimbursement - - - 13,887 13,887
Other assets - — - 104,235 104,235
Total Assets § G087502 § 2750830 § - § 184,249  § 9,002,981
Hon-interest
At August 31, 2024 Up to 1 year 1 -5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
Liabilities
Pavables for
Sacurities purchased s - § - 5 - 5 510,025 5 510,025
Professional fees = - = 43,081 43.081
Printing fees - - - 35372 35.372
Dastribution fees - - - 17,461 17.461
Custody fees - - - 3614 3614
Investment managemeant foes - = - 2133 2,133
Transfer agent fees - - - 1,778 1,778
Fee agant fees - - - 1,707 1,707
Agent member company fees - - - 143 143
Manager suppor service pravider fees - - - 72 72
Liabilities {excluding net assets
attributable to the holder of redeamable
units) - - - 615,386 615,386
Total interest and sensitivity gap § 6067902 § 2750830 § - & (431137} & 8,387,595
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Non-interast
At August 31, 2023 Up to 1 year 1-5 years Ower 5 years bearing Total
Assets
Financial assets al fair valua through profit or
loss 6359853 & 2247918 § - 8 - 5 B.BOF.7T
Cash and cash equivalents 369,098 - - - 359,006
Receivables for,
Interast - - = 42,761 42,761
Expense reimbursament - - - 26,683 26,693
Securities sold = = = 9 9
Other assols - - - 97,298 7. 258
Total Assets § 6728949 § 2247918 § - $ 166761 § 9143628
Hon-interast
At August 31, 2023 Up to 1 year 1-5years Ower 5 years bearing Total
Liabilities
Payables for:
Printing fees 5 - 8§ - & - § 37454 -3 37454
Professional feas - - - 29,8604 28,604
Investment management fees - - - 15679 15,679
Units repurchased - - - 12,735 12,735
Dristribution fees - - - 10,492 10,482
Transfer agent fees - - - 4,436 4,436
Fee agent fees - - - 1,544 1.844
Custody feas - - - 1,077 1,077
Agent member company fees - - - 154 154
Manager suppon service provider lees - = - Ta 78
Liabilities {excluding net assets
attributable to the holder of redeemable
units) - - - 113,553 113,553
Total interest and sensitivity gap $ 6728943 § 2247918 § - & 53,208 5 9,030,075

Al August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis paoints with all other
variables remaining constant, the increase or decrease in net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units from
operations for the perod would amount to approximately $33,557 and $41.193, respectively assuming that the cash
position will b held for one year. This is caused mostly by the changes in market values of debt securities.

{ill) Market Price Risk

The markef price of securiies owned by the Seres Trust may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably,
Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally or parlicular industries represented in
the securities markels. The value of a security may decline due to general market conditions which are not specifically
related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions, supply and demand for
particular securities or instruments, changes in the general outlook for corporale eamings. changes in interest or
currency rales or adverse investor sentment, They may also decline due to factors which affect
a particular industry or industries, such as labor shorages or increased production costs and competitive conditions
within an industry. During a general downtum in the securilies markets, multiple asset classes may decling in value
simultaneously. Equity securifies generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.
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The tables below summarize the concentration in market price risk as at August 31, 2024

Industry Name Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investment in debt securities
Auto Manufacturers 3 519,923 5.2%
Banks 6,449,832 T5.9%
Engineering & Construction 496,945 5.9%
Government 208,348 3.6%
Total investment in debt securities 5 7,765,048 92.6%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss s 7,765,048 92.6%
Country Name Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investment in debt securities
Auestralia 5 4,348 063 51.8%
France 537,845 5.4%
Japan 500,356 6.0%
Multi-Mational 208,348 3.8%
Natharands 339 875 4.1%
New Zeatand 750,600 8.9%
Switzerand 338,122 4.0%
United Kingdom 650,839 7.8%
Total investment in debt securities s 7. 765,048 92.6%
$ 7,765,048 92.6%

The tables below summarize the concentration in market price risk as at August 31, 2023

Industry Name Fair Valua % of Net Assets
Investment in debt securities
Auto Manufacturers 5 1.406,708 15.6%
Banks 6,905,592 TE.4%
Govermnment 295,471 3.3%
Total investment in debt securities - 8,607,771 95.3%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss $ 8,607,771 95.3%
Country Mame Fair WValue % of Net Assets
Investment in debt securities
Ausiralia 5 4,917,528 54.4%
Canada 202,597 10.0%
Japan 500,680 55%
kuHi-MNational 295,471 3.3%
Switzerland 324 677 3.6%
United States 1,666,818 18.5%
Total investment in debt securities $ 8,807,771 95.3%
$ 8,607,771 95,3%

As the Series Trust’s investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect the total net assels and total comprehensive
income.

An increase in market prices of the investments in debt securities of 1% at August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, would,
all else being equal, increase net assets attnbutable to the holder of redeemable units by 77,650 and $86,078,
respactively. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal but opposite effect,

(B) Credit Risk
The Series Trust lakes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when they fall due,

Changes in an issuer's credit rating or the market's parception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the value of the
Series Trusl's investment in that issuer. The degree of cradit risk depends on both the financial condition of the issuer
and the terms of the obligation.

All transactions in listed securities are settied/paid for upoen delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is
considerad minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made
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on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet their
obligation.

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure o credit risk of all financial assets at August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023 is the carrying
amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position, No collateral or other credit enhancements are held by the
Series Trust, None of these assels are impaired or past dua,

At August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023 the clearing and depository operations for the Series Trust's securily
ransactions are mainly concentrated with the Custodian, with a Fitch rating of A+. At August 31, 2024 and August 31,
2023, substantially all cash and cash equivalents and investments are placed in custody with the Custodian,

The Seres Trust's policy to manage this risk is to invest in debt securities that have an investment grade
by a well-known rating agency, Moody's. The Serias Trust may also invest in unrated assets whera a raling is assigned
by the investment advisor using an approach that is consistent with the approach used by that rating agency.

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Seres Trust's debt portfolio at August 31, 2024 as a percentage
of net assets.

Rating” % of Met Assets

Aaa 1.6%
Aaz 38.2%
Al 32.9%
a2 2.4%
Baat 9.6%
Baa2 59%

92.6%

*Securily ratings, if any, are oblained from Moody's/SEP's Investor Servics,

The following table summarizes the credit quality of the Series Trust's debt portfolio at August 31, 2023 as a percentage
of net assets.

Rating* % of Net Assets
Aaa 3.3%
Aad 28.3%
Al 3%
AZ 10.5%
A3 19.1%
95.3%

*Security ratings. if any, are oblained from Moody's/S&P's Investor Service.

{C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust's investments in illiquid
securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities
at an advantageous time or price. To the extent that the Series Trust's principal investment strategies involve non-
developed couniry securities, derivatives or securities with substantial market andfor credit risk, the Seres Trust will tend
o have the greatest exposure to liguidity risk.

18

116/195



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2024
(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)

The tables below analyze the Series Trust's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position dafe o the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At August 31, 2024 Less than 1 month 1 - 3 months Tatal
Payables for:
Securities purchased 5 510,025 % - s 510,025
Professional fees 43,081 a 43,081
Printing fees 35372 - 35,372
Distribution fees 17,461 - 17 461
Custody fees 3614 - 3614
Investment management fees 2.133 - 2133
Transfer agent fees 1,778 - 1,778
Fee agent fees 1.707 - 1,707
Agent member company fees 143 - 143
Manager support sarvice provider fees T2 - 72
Contractual cash out flows 13 615386 % - § 615,386
At August 31, 2023 Less than 1 manth 1 - 3 months Total
Payables for;
Printing feas % a7.454 £ = $ 37 454
Professicnal fees 29,604 - 29,604
Investment management fees 15,679 - 15,678
Units repurchased 12,735 - 12,735
Distribution fees 10,4592 - 10,4592
Transfer agent fees 4,436 - 4,436
Fesa agent fees 1,844 - 1,844
Custody fees 1,077 - 1.077
Agent member company fees 154 - 154
Manager support service provider fees 78 - 78
Contractual cash out flows $ 113,553 % - 3 113,553

Units are repurchased on demand at the holder's oplion. However, the Trustee does not envision that this contractual
malurity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments typically retain them
for the medium to long term.

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's liquidity position on an on-going basis.
Liquidity risk is managed by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiquid assets.

(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust's Investment Manager's team is supporied by cerain risk management systems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative nsk measures. Prospective investors should be
aware that no risk management system is fail-safe, and no assurance can be given that risk frameworks employed by the
Manager (e.q., stop-win, stop-loss, sharpe ratios, oss limits, value-at-nsk or any other methodalogy now known or later
developed) will achieve their objectives and prevent or otherwise limit substantial losses. No assurance can be given that
the risk management systems and lechniques or pricing models will accurately predict future trading pattemns or the
manner in which investments are priced in financial markets in the future.

(E) Capital Risk Management

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of redeemabla units. The
amount of net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units can change significantly on a daily basis as the
Series Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trust's
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of the investment activiies of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series
Trust's policy is to perform the following:

= honitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of
distributions the Series Trust pays (o the holder of redeemable units.

®  Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constilutional documents of the Series Trusl.
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The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units.
5.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks

{A) Custody Risk

Meither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Serdes Trust's entire holding of securities, The
Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to act as custodians may become insolvent, causing the Series
Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians,

(B) Rizk of Indemnification

The Trusiee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Cuslodian, and other parties, and each of their respeclive agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under
certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Assel Value per unit.

(C) Settlement Risk

Setflement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States, the
European Union and Japan. Foreign setliement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve certain
risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the setilement of United States
investments, At times, setlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of securities
fransactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Manager to carry out fransactions for the account of the Senes
Trust.

If the Manager cannol setle or is delayved in sellling a purchase of securites, it may miss altractive investment
opporunities and cerain of the Series Trust's assets may be uninvested with no return eamed thereon for some year. If
the Manager cannot settle or is defayed in setlling a sale of securities, the Series Trust may lose money if the value of
the security then declines or, if it has contracted to sell the security to another party; the Series Trust could be liable for
any losses incurred,

(D) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which the
Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in material losses
fo the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Senes Trust to the
counterparties in order (o secure certain fransactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager during the years ended
August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023,

The Seres Trust has not offset any financial assets or liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and did not hold
any derivalive assets,

(E) Concentration Risk

The Investment Manager will invest substantially all of the proceeds from the sale of the Units in the Selecled Bonds and
therefore losses incurred by the Selecled Bonds will have a matenal adverse effect on the Seres Trust's overall financial
position.

(F) Risk of investing In Australian Bonds

Exposure to instrumants of issuers may involve significant economic and political risks. By investing in Australian Bonds,
the Series Trust will be exposed to the direct or indirect consequences of political, social and economic changes in
Australia. Political changes may affect the willingness of the Australian issuers to make or provide for timely payments of
their debt obligations. The country's and local economic status, as reflected, among other things, in its inflation rate, the
amount of its external debt and its gross domestic product, will also affect the local issuers’ ability to honor their
obligations.

{G) Mo Interest in the Selected Bonds
Any return on the Units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Bonds. An investment in
Units does nat give a Unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Bonds,

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust

Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for August 29, 2025, the Final Repurchase Day will
be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event ocour,
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5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS Accounting Standard 13, 'Fair value measuvrement’ and ulilizes the last traded market
price for its fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities,

An aclive markel is & market in which transactions for the assel or Lability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
exisling at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options,
currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm's length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation technigues commeonly used by market paricipants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying
as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active markel, the Series Trust may use internally developed models, which are
usually based on valuation methods and technigues generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of the
inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions,
The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value thal cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation techniques employved may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds, Valuations
are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, 1o allow for additional factors including model risk, hiquidity rsk and
counterpary rigk.

The Serias Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

"  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies that the entity
can access al the measurement date;

®  Lewvel 2 inpuls are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either diractly or indirectly; and

®  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurament is categorized in its antirely is determined on
the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the
significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses
observable inpuls that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its enfirety requires
judgment, considening factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under advisemeant
of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be that market data
that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, nol proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market,

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according 1o the inputs used as of August 31, 2024 in valuing the Series
Trust's financial assets held for trading:

{Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
tdentical Significant Other Significant

Financial Assets Designated at Fair Investments  Observable Inputs Unobservable Fair Value at
Valua Through Profit or Loss {Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)  August 31, 2024
Investrment in debl securnlies & - % 7765048 & - 5 7,765,048
Financial assets, at fair value through

profit or loss £ - % 7,765,048 § - & 7,765,048
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The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of August 31, 2023 in valuing the Series
Trust's financial assets held for trading:

{Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Significant Other Significant

Financial Assets Designated at Fair Investments  Observable Inputs Unobservable Fair Value at
Value Through Prefit or Loss {Lewvel 1) {Lewel 2) Inputs (Level 3)  August 31, 2023
Invesimant in dabt securities 5 - 5 8,607 771 s - 5 8,607 771
Financial assets, at fair value through

profit or loss 5 - & BEOT.7TT1 8 - & 8607771

Dwring the years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, there were no transfers batween Levels 1, 2 and 3.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2.
These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not
traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or
non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

Investments  classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently,
As of August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, the Seres Trust did not hold investments classified as Level 3,

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

{1y At August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilities
{including other assets, receivables for interest, expense reimbursemeant and securities sold and payables for
sacurities purchased, units repurchased, printing fees, professional fees, custody fees, fee agent fees, transfar
agent fees, distribution fees, investment management fees, agent member company fees and manager support
service provider fees) are deemed short-term financial assets and liabilties whose carmmying amounts
approximate fair value because of their short-term nature. Refer to Mote 2 for a description of the valuation
techniques.

(1)  Net assels atiributable to the holder of redeemable unils. The Seres Trust repurchases and issues the units at
the amount equal to the proportionate share of net assets of the Series Trust at the time of repurchase,
calculated on a basis consistent with that used in these financial statemenls. Accordingly, the carrying amount
of net assets attributable 1o the holder of redeemable units approximates their fair value,

6. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

August 31, 2024 August 31, 2023

Met gainf{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss consist of the following:
Met realized (loss) on invesiments in debt securities 3 (221) 5 {3,357)

MNet realized (loss) on investments in forward contracts {209)
Tatal ned realized (loss) on fnancial assets and liabilities at fair
valuee through profit or loss 3 (221} 5 {3,966)
Movement in net unrealized appreciation on investments in
debt securites g B7.521 -] 06, 329
Tatal net change in unrealized appreciation on financial assels
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 3 87,521 & 96,329
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7. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
7.1 Fees and Expenses

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrater receives an annual fee of 0.07% on the first USE500 million of net assets, 0.06% on the next US3500
million of the net assets and 0.05% on the net assets over US$1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of 33,750, The
fees samed by the Administrator during the years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, and oulstanding fees
payable to the Administrator as of August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprahensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respactively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian will receive a fee of 0.03% per annum of the Met Asset Value accrued on and calculated as at each
valuation day, payabde monthly in arrears. The fees earmed by the Custodian during the years ended August 31, 2024
and August 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, have
been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statemeant of Financial Position, respectively.

(C) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of net assets and a £10 fee per transaction. The fees eamed by the
Transfer Agent during the years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the
Transfer Agent as of August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respeactively,

(D) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees, The fees paid during the years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31,
2023, and outstanding fees payable as of August 21, 2024 and August 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehansive Incomea and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Distribution Fees

The Distributors receive a fee of up o and including 0.30% per annum of the Met Asset Value accrued on and calculated
as at each valuation day multiplied by the fraction of units of such class for which the Distributors are unitholders divided
by the tolal number of units issued in respect of such class of units, and payable monthly in arrears (the “Distribution
Fees”).

The Distribution Fees may be adjusted and notified by the Investment Manager to the Administrator on a2 monthly basis in
accordance with the Distribution and Repurchase Agreement and are linked to the 2-year Australian Government Bond
Yields as shown in table below,

2-year Australian Government Bond Yields Dis:‘rihulinn Foes
ercentage
(per annum of the Net Asset Value)
Less than or equal 1o 0.50% 0.05%
Above 0.50% and less than or equal to 0.75% 0, 10%
Above 0.75% and less than or equal to 1.00% 0.15%
Above 1.00% and less than or equal o 1.25% 0.20%
Above 1.25% 0.30%

The Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assats of the Series Trust,
The fees eamed by the Distributars during the years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, and outstanding fees
payable to the Distributors as of August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.
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7.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considerad to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustes, Fee Agent, Manager and Agent Member
Company are all related parties to the Senes Trust,

There wera no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(A) Trustee Fees
The Trustee receives a fixed annual fee of US$10,000 per annum payable annually in advance out of the Operational
Costs Fee,

(B) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assets Value (the "Operafional Costs Fees”), accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day. The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee
oul of the assets of the Senes Trust. The fees earned by the Fee Agent during the years ended August 31, 2024 and
August 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, have besn
disciosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respactively,

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees, the Trustee Fees and costs and expenses, which are, in the
reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, delermined as associated costs and expenses of the Manager Fees and
Trustee Fees (the "Ordinary Costs").

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fea Agent is not responsible for the payment of the capped expenses, extraordinany
expenses, broker expenses or miscellaneous expenses. Capped expenses will be paid by the Administrator, on behalf of
the Trustee, out of the assets of the Series Trust up to and including the TER Cap, and any Capped Expenses above the
TER Cap will be bome by the Investment Manager. Extraordinary Expenses, Broker Expenses and Miscellaneous
Expenses fall outside of the TER Cap and shall be paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets
of the Series Trust.

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fees do nol cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent will be liable for any
outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following paymeant of the Ordinary Costs will be retained by the Fea Agant
as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.

The Operational Costs Fees will be payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued from and excluding, for the first
accrued pariod only, the Initial Closing Day, and for all other accrued periods, the last day of each calendar quarter, each
being a "Fee Calculation Day®, to and including, for all but the last accrual period, the next Fee Calculation Day, and for
the last accrual period, the Final Repurchase Day or if such day is not also a Valuation Day then the immediately
preceding Valuation Day (the "Final Valuation Day"}.

For the avoidance of doubt, should the Final Valuation Day not also be a Fee Calculation Day, the last accrual period
shall end on the Final Yaluation Day.

(C) Manager Fees
The Manager receives out of the Operational Costs Fee, a managemeant fee of USE5,000 per annum payable monthly in
amears,

(D) Investment Management Fees

The Investment Manager receives a fee of up 1o and including 0.30% per annum of the Met Asset Value accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The Investment Manager Feas will be paid by the
Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets of the Series Trust.
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2024
(Expressed in Australian Dolfars)

The Investment Management Fees may be adjusted and notified by the Investment Manager to the Administrator on
a monthly basis in accordance with the Investment Management Agreement and are linked to the 2-year Australian
Government Bond Yields as shown in lable below.

Investment Management Fees
Percentape
(per annum of the Net Asset Value)

2-year Australian Government Bond Yields

Less than or equal 1o 0,50% 0.05%
Above 0.50% and less than or equal to 0.75% 0.10%
Above 0.75% and less than or equal to 1.00% 0.15%
Above 1.00% and less than or equal to 1.25% 0.20%
Above 1,25%, 0.30%,

The fees earned by the Investment Manager during the years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, and
outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager as of August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, have been disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Manager Support Service Provider Fees

The Manager Support Service Provider Fees receives an annual fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued
on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears, The Manager Support Service Provider Fees
are paid by the Administrator, on behall of the Trustee, out of the assets of the Seres Trust, The fees eamed by the
Manager Support Service Provider Fees during the years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, and outstanding
fees payable to the Manager Supporl Service Provider Fees as of August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, have bean
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Staterment of Financial Position, respectively.

(F) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company receives a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and calculated as at
each valuation day and payable quarterly in arrears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator,
on behalf of the Manager out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Agent Member Company during
the years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Member Company as
of August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Staterment of Financial Position, respectively.

8. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Seres Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During the
years ended August 31, 2024 and August 31, 2023, the Series Trust did nol incur any borowings.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events through December 10, 2024, the date on which these
financial staterments were availabla to be issued. Effective September 1, 2024 through December 10, 2024, thare were
subscriptions of $2,135 and repurchases of 530,663, There are no other subsequent events to report as relates to the
Series Trust.
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2024 12
8,338,418 821,334,173
-122,943 -12,109,886
8,461,361 833,444,059
7,854,742
1.0772 106
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2024 12

1,859,815,739
10,663,126

13 79,397,921
46,913,031,733
2,334,943,912
17 123,120,656,269
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2023 2022
usb usb
60,034 9,496 14,396 2,277
60,034 9,496 14,396 2,277
60,034 9,496 14,396 2,277
185,000 29,263 205,000 32,427
(25) ) 58 9
245,009 38,756 219,454 34,713
(115,081) (18,204) (112,703) (17,827)
129,928 20,552 106,751 16,886
129,928 20,552 106,751 16,886
129,928 20,552 106,751 16,886
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2023 12 31

2023 2022

usD usD
9 2,249,019 355,750 1,984,033 313,834
10 185,864 29,400 205,864 32,564
2,434,883 385,150 2,189,897 346,398
10 451,584 71,432 336,526 53,232
451,584 71,432 336,526 53,232
11 735,000 116,262 735,000 116,262
1,248,299 197,456 1,118,371 176,904
1,983,299 313,718 1,853,371 293,166
2,434,883 385,150 2,189,897 346,398

2024 14
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2023 12 31
usD usD usD
2023
735,000 116,262 1,118,371 176,904 1,853,371 293,166
129,928 20,552 129,928 20,552
12 31 735,000 116,262 1,248,299 197,456 1,983,299 313,718
2022
735,000 116,262 1,011,620 160,018 1,746,620 276,280
106,751 16,886 106,751 16,886
12 31 735,000 116,262 1,118,371 176,904 1,853,371 293,166
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

usD usD
129,928 20,552 106,751 16,886
4 (60,034) (9,496) (14,396) (2,277)
69,894 11,056 92,355 14,609
20,000 3,164 4,999 791
20,000 3,164 4,999 791
115,058 18,200 112,595 17,810
115,058 18,200 112,595 17,810
4 60,034 9,496 14,396 2,277
264,986 41,915 224,345 35,487
264,986 41,915 224,345 35,487
9 1,984,033 313,834 1,759,688 278,347
2,249,019 355,750 1,984,033 313,834
9 2,249,019 355,750 1,984,033 313,834

2,249,019 355,750 1,984,033 313,834
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KY1-1104 309
c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
37
5.1

2023 12
2024 31
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2023 2022

60,034 14,396

60,034 14,396
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2023 2022
185,000 205,000
185,000 205,000

2023 2022
(48) (50)
(6,390) (6,478)
(108,643) (106,175)
(115,081) (112,703)

2039 10 10

138/195



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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2023 2022
2,249,019 1,984,033
2,249,019 1,984,033

2023 2022
185,864 205,864
185,864 205,864

2023 2022
451,584 336,526
451,584 336,526

2023 2022

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864

185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864

451,584 451,584 336,526 336,526

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

1,186,584 1,186,584 1,071,526 1,071,526
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000

185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
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13
2023 2022
108,643 106,175
108,643 106,175
14
2023 12 31
15 2023 12 31
2023 12 31
16
2023 12
2024 31 2024
17

2024 14
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Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December 2023

Rﬂﬁﬁﬂu 2023 2022
Interectincome e 0088 T TAESE
- from firancial instruments measurad af amorfised
cost 60,034 14 258
Total interest income 4 50,034 14,396
o e 05"
“Oither (losses)/revenuss (25) ER
Total revenues 245,009 219,454
“Ganeral, adminisirativs and ciher cperating sxpensss 6 aisoa {179 705)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 129,828 108,751
Profit before tax 129,928 106,751
'fﬁéHrFTé‘t‘éi'éiEéHEé""'"""""""'"" e et —
Profit after tax 129,928 108,751

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of these financlal statements
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023

Raferenca 2023 2022
uso o Mate

................................................................................................................

Cashanddue tembarks 8 ...2218019  1,984035
Cthar aseets 10 165,854 o005 864

Total assets 2,434,883 2,189,897

B . e nal e
Giher fiabiities i) 451,584 336,525
Total liabilities 451,584 336,526

PRI SO A T R S
Sl s i M s R o TR
Retzined earnings 1,248,298 1,118,371
Total shareholders’ equity 1,983,299 1,883,371
Total liabilities and shareholders® equily 2,434,883 2,188,887

Approved and autherised for zzus by the board of directors on 14 June 2024
o |
I o e ;
}ﬁt’{:.kn "t.:r.f'ﬁ-’-" ; Director .
i}:ﬂtt"v‘.t }

The accompanying notes form an integral part of {hess financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

Share capital Retainad Tetal
usp samings
2023
Balance at Tianuary T 735000 118,371 1,863,371
Frofit for the year - 129,023 125,908
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,248,299 1,983,299
2022
Balance at January 785,000 1011620 1,748,620
Profit for the year 106,751 106,761
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,371

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Staternent of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

ush _ﬁ;hm 2025 2022
Cash flows from cperating activities

Profit befora {ax for the period 199,528 106,751
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash

_generated from operating aclivities

Mon-cash items included in netl profit before tax

and ather adjustments:

Irterast Income 4 {80,034) (14,398}
o L i o S
changes in operating assets and liabilities 69,894 92,385
Net decreasein operatingassets: .
Other assets 20,000 4,559
Nel decrease in operating assets 20,000 4,988
MNetincraase in operating liabilities: = ... cesemermssemaeenenenspapaszase
Other liabiltias 115,058 112,585
MNet increase !n Eper_aﬂng Jl_iahﬂlﬂes: 115,068 112,595
s e e T SR e Ty
Net cash generated from operating activity 264,986 224,345
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 264,986 224,345
Cash and cash equivalants at the beginning of year 9 1,884 032 1,769,688
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,249,019 1,984,083
Cash and due from barks G 224518 1,584,033
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,249,019 1,984,033

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
1. Principal activities

UBS Managemant {Cayman) Limited (the "Company™} i= incorporated 'n the Cayman |slands with
limited liability. The Company's principal activitiss are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of asseis in trusiz, The Company's registered office is ¢/o Maples Corporate Servicas
Limited, P.O. Bex 308, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY'1-1104, Cayman Islands.

Key developments during the year

On 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeeding by aperation of
Swiss law to all assets and liabiities of Credit Suisse Group AS, and became the direct or indirect
shareholder of all of the former direct and indirect subsidiaries of Credit Suisse Group AG (the
Tramsaction).

Upon the completion of the Transaction, each oulstanding, registered Credit Suisse share converled
o the right lo receive, subject to the payment of cerlsin fess to the Credit Suisse depositony in the
case of Credit Suisse American depositery shares (ADS), the merger conslderafion consisting of
1/22.48 UBS Group AG shares. In aggregate, Credit Sulsse shareholders received 5.1% of the
outstanding UBS Group AG shares on the acquisition date, with a purchasa price of USD 3.7 billion,

In December 2023, the Beard of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and
Credt Suisse AG, and both entitizs entered inte a definitive marger agresment. The merger i
completed on 31 May 2024,

2.  Material Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been preparad in accordance with all applicable IFRS Accounting
Standards, which cofective term includes all applicatle indiddual Intermaticnal Financlal Reparting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (lASS") and Interpretations issued by International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Company is set cut below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements
The measurement basis used inthe preparztien of the financial statements is the historcal cost basis.

The preparation of financlal statements in corformity with IFRS Accounting Standards reguires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of pelicies
and reported amounis of assets, liabilities, incorme and expenses. The sstiimales and asscciated
assumptions ere based on historicel experience and various other faclors that are believed o be
reascnable under the circumstancas, the rasults of which form the basis of making the judgaments
about carmying values of assets and llabiltizs that are not readly spparent from cther sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions ara reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimabes are recognised in the period in which the estimale is revised if the revision affects only that
parod, or in the perod of the revision and future periods if the revisicn affects both current and filure
periods.
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2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)

i(b) Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)

Standards effective in the current period

The group has appied the following naw and amended standards for s annual reporting period
commancing 1 January 2023

. Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to A5 8
. Disclosure of Accouniing Policies — Amendments o [AS 1 and [FRS Practics Statement 2

The amendmeants listed above did not have any mpact on the ameunts recegrised in prior perdods
and ara not expected 1o significantly affect the current or future periods.

{c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due frem banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
figuld investments that are readily convertible into known ameunts of cash and which are subject lo an
insignificant risk of changes In value, having bean within thres months of maturity at acquisition,

{d} Foreign currency

The Company's functional and presentation cumency is United States Dollars (*USD'). Foreign
currency transactions during the year are tranzlated inte USD at the forzign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assats and Fabilifies dencminated in foreign currencies are transated
inta USD at the foreign exchange rates nuing ai the end of the reparting pariod. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Mon-monetary assets and liabilties that ars measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are franslated into USD wusing the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and [fabilitiss denominated in foreign currencies that are slaled at fai valus are
translated using the forsign exchange rates ruling st the dates the fair valus was determined. Foreign
currency differences arising on refranslation are recognised In profit or less.

(e} Other assets

Cther assets are inltially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated 2t amortised cost less
Expected Credit Lose ('ECL") (refer to Note 2(g)), excent whera the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairmeant for bad and doubtiul
debts,

(f) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain tming or amount when the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an autflow of sconomic
benefits will be required to setths the obligaticn and a reliable sstimate cash be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the sxpenditure expected to
seftle the obligation,

Where it is not probatle that an outflow of economic bensfits will be required, or the amount cannct

be astimated refiably, the obligation is disclored as a contingant [iabifity, unless the probabiity of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possibla obligations, whose existence wil only be confirmed
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2. Malerial Accounting Policies {(continued)
(f) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

by the cocurrence of nen-cocurrence of one or more fulure events are also disclosed as contingent
lintilities unless the probability of outflow of econamic benafits is ramote.

(g) Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is any objeclive evidence of impairment. If any such chjective evidence
exists, the assel's recoverable amcunt is estinated at the end of each repeiling period. An
impairment koss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment lasses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Under IFRS S, the impairment requirements apply primarily to financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The impaiment requirements are based on a forward-locking expected cradil loss model by
incorporating reasonable and supporiable ferecasts of future economic conditions availabls at the
reporting date. This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is determinaé on a prababilty-weighted basis,

(h) Revenue recognition

Provided thal # is probable that the economic banefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured refably, service fea income is recognised in profit or loss when
the investmant management service is provided.

(i) Expenses
All expenses are recognised in profit and loss on an acerual basis.
{i} Related parties

For the purposas of thesa financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Company if:
(a) A persen, or a close member of that persen's family, is related to the Company if that persen:
) has contrel or jeint contral over the Company;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or
(it) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company's
parent.

(b} An entity is related lo the Company if any of the following conditicns zpplies;

(0 The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and tallow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i One enlity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity for an asscciate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other antity is & member).

(i) Both enttias are joint vantures of the same third party,

(W) One enfity 15 & joint venture of a thind party and the other enlily Is an associate of the
third party.

) The gnﬂnt:; is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an enfity related to the Company,

(v} The entity is controled or jointly controlied by a person identified in (a),

(Wi} A person identified in (2)(l} has significant influence over the entity or ks 2 member of the
key managament personnel of the antity (or of a parent of the entity),

10
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2. Material Accounting Policles (continued)
{j) Related parties (continued}

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be axpected to
influence, or be influenced by, that parson in the'r dealings with the entily.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The |ASH has issued a number of amendments to IFR3 Accounting Standards that ara first eifective
for the current accounting pericd of the Company, The adopton of these amendments had no
material impact to the Company's financial position, result of cperations or cash flows.

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
cument acceunting period (Note 15),

4, Total Interest Income:

UsD 2023 2022
Total interest income

Interest income on cash and due from banks 80,034 14,395
Total interest incoma 60,034 14,286

Al the sgbove inferest incomea on Tnancal instruments measurad at amortisad cost,
5. Semice Fee Income

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of asseals in frusts,

Revenue reprasents investment management fee income samed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

usD 2023 2022
o] SO I Bl O et eeeereaeananeneseneneneanennenn e ee .
Service fee income 185,000 205,000
Total service fee income 185,000 205,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Usn 2023 2022
[General administrative and other operatingexpenses .
Bankohlrgee oo T, P e E0)
Auditer rermunsration (6.3200 (6,478)
e Bt e e {11386-'-‘-3] ....... g 75}
Total general administrative and other operating expenses {115,081) (112,703)

All of the above expenditures ara payable to the Company's immadiate holding company and the
immediate hoklding company seitles such expenditures on behalf of the Company,
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7. Taxation

There are no laxes on income or gans in the Cayman lslands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Govemor in Council of the Cayman islands exempling it from all local income,
profits and caphal taxes until 10 October 2039, Accordingly, na prevision for income taves is induded
in theze financial statements.

B. Unconsolidated Struclured Entities

Sponsored unconsolidaied struciured eniities

The Company considers iself the sponser of a structured entity when elther ks namea appears In the
name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation from the
market that the Company is assoclated with the struciured enlity or the Company was involved in the
design or set up of the structured entity and has a form of imolvemant with the structured antify.

The below unconsoidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where & fixed annual
management fee of USD 5,000 (2022: USD 5,000} is received but no interest is held by the
Company as at 31 Dacember 2023

12
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

Eluhal Select Carry Strategy Fund

LT EECC

Alstralian ngh Dividand Equrly Twin P.Iﬂha Fund {Fw Cualified Institutional invesicrs Dnlj.r]
tl*.utronal Investors Gmﬁ-'“h

Frlm:lpal £ CS Ear‘a.d'tan Equrtf Inc-mna Fund (For Cualified Institutional Investors Onby)
Glnhal REI‘I' Thinla Pramium Fund EF-:r Eluaﬁn&d Tmstitutional investors On )

us Hngh Div Equity Bremium Fund (F (For ‘Cluaiifiad Institutional Investors Oy’

US Emajl Cap Equity Pramium Fund (For Chnalﬁed Enshmlnnal Imrasinrs Glnly}

us F'rafarred REIT Income Fum:l {Fnr Giualited Institutional invastors Oniy}

i Eqly P Fnd o G nivira ivasiors On T
INE/MYAN US REN Income Fund (For Cluakiiad Institutional kwestorsOnb)
dend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Dalwa WL "-."untures I1 L P. Fund D e S S
“Brazi Equd}i Npha Fund {For Qualiied Institutional investors ﬂnly}

sessssssEmsamt B e e L EE T

Daiwa erl an Raal Emd Funrd [Fu' ﬂua.lll'ned Ins':tuhmal Investnrs Cnly)

lesgy Japan‘Equ ty Active Fund (For Qualfisd institutional investors Cnly)

AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Quallfied insilutional nvestors Onlyy ™™™
JRE[T and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualited Insiilutional investors Only) ™ """ """
gag«ia American High Dwvidend Equity Quaitro Inceme Fund (For Qualified institutional investors

n
Daiwa American REIT Guattro incorie Furd (For Cualfied instuutional Investors Only) "~

Shmael Wndd | Wrap . Stahé : Type (F (Far Duajrﬁed Insirtutmnal Imvestors Clrriyﬂl

s Murk:qpal Sond Fund

EEEECEEE e E T T

Tokio Marine CAT Fond Fund

Elobal Hag_r* Dividend e:r.!mt_f Frama.lrr' FUI'lﬂ {Fm' Gu&lrﬁad- tnstrtuim.r'al Investors le:;}

sinupsnussslE e NEE RS BE P e A e R

Meister's Collection

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

BSMD Global Ad'mntage

e R T T R L L L L L L]

"FIMCO Short Tarm incoma Strataqy Fund

Fereign Deno:mna.hed Man AHL Senart Leverage Strategy Fund

B T T

SE' F'i:':ta" Assa HJ-Tach Venture Fund

FEEBES S S SIS PSRN A I E AR N IS AN S S BN BE EE SRS EE B

"AUL Short Term Bond Fund

Insight .ﬂdpha

s D:.mamn: Growth Fund

Premium Carry Strateqy Fund
* The funds wers terminated during 2023.

The Company has not provided finarcial or ather support to unconsclidatad structured entilies that it
was not contractually required to provide,

The Company does not currently have the itention to provide financial or other support to
uneonsolidated struciured antitias that it is not contractually required to previde
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UsD 2023 2022
Cash and due from banks

Cash and dus from barks 2248019 1,984,033
Total cash and due from banks 2,249,019 1,984,033
10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

Ush 2023 2022
Cther assets

Intarast and fees recaivable 185,264 705,854
Total other assets 185,864 205,864
Ush 2023 2022
Cther liabilities

Interest and fees payable 451,584 336,526
Total other liabilities 451,584 336,526
11. Share Capital

(a) Authorised and issued share capital

2023 2022
No. of UsD Mo. of usp
shares shares

Authorised:

Ordinary sharas of USD | sach 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000000
Issued and fully paid up:

Ordinary shares 736,000 726,000 736,000 736,000

The holders of ordinary shares are enfitied to recafre dividends as declared from fime to time and are
entitied ko one vote per share at general maetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company's residual assets.

14
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11.  Share Capital (continued)
{b} Capital managemeni

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s abilily to
continue as & going concern 50 that it can conlinue lo provida retums to shareholders, by pricing
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasoneble
cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of additional capital and
pelicies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the group's capital managsment
objectives, Tha Company defines ‘capital® as induding all compenants of aquity,

The Company's capitel structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adustments are made fo the
capital structure in light of changes in econemic conditions affecting the Cempany or the group, te
tha extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not sutject o externally imposed capital requirements in the current pericd,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exgosure to credit, liquidty, interest rate and foreign cumency risks arises in the normal course of the
Company's business. These risks are managed by the Company's financial management golicies and
practices described balow.

(a) Credit risk

The Company's cradht risk is primarily attibutable to amounts dus from group companias end cash at
bank. Cradit risk is defined as risk that cne parly to a financial instrument wil cause a financial loss to
another party by failing to discharge an cbligation. Management regulary monitors its risk exposure to
ensure that its credit risk is kept to a minimal level. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carming amount of each Tinandal assat in the staterment of financial position after
deducting any impairmant allowance.

{b) Liquidity risk

The Company's polcy is to regularly moniter its liquidity requirements to satisfy its conftractual and
reasonably foresesable obligations as they fall dus.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the Company's financial labilities, which includes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand or undated and are expected to be setiled bebtwesn thres to twalve
months.

{c) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only fo the extent that it eamns bank interest on cash

and deposits. Al 31 December 2025 and 2022, a change in interest rates would have no direct
matarial effect cn the carrying value of the recegnisad assets or fizbditas of the Company.

15
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12,  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposad to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions which give rsa
to payables that are denominated in Heng Kong dollars ("HKD"). As the HKD is pegged to the USD,

the Company cansiders that the risk of moverents in exchange rates betwesn USD and HKD to be
insignificant.

(&) Fair values

The canying amounts of ine Company's financial instruments caried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially diffarent from thair fair velue as at 21 December 2023 and 2092,

13. Material Related Parly Transactions

In addition to the transactons and balances disclosed elsswhers in the financial statements, the
Company enlered into the Tollowing material relatec party transactions.

{a) Related party balance sheet iransactions

31 December 2023 31 Decembor 2022
Parent Fallow Total Parent Fellow Taotal
Group Group
UsD Companies Companies
Assets
Ciher assels — 185,854 185,864 — 205,884 205,554
Total assats — 185864 185864 — 205,864 205,864
Lisbilities and
Equity
Other liebiliies o &B1ERE = 4515 335 506 — 336,595
Shara cagilal 35,000 — 735,000 735,000 — V35,000
Total liabllities and
shareholders'
equity 1,186,584 — 1,186584 1,071,526 — 1,071,526
16
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13.  Material Related Pariy Transactions (continued)

{b) Related party revenues and expenses

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Parant Fellow Total Parant Fellow Total
Group Group
uso Companies Companies
Revenues
S W o e |- e 2000, 205000
Total revenues — 185,000 185,000 i 205,000 208,000

{c) Remuneration of key management personnel

“Remuneration of key management personnel (USD) 2023 2022
Cirector's Fes 106,843 106,175
Total Remuneration of key management personnel 108,643 108,175

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2023, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Suisse (Hong Fong) Limited,
which Is Incorporated in Heng Kong and the ultimate controlling party of the Company is USS Group
AG, which is incorporated in Switzedand, UBS Group AG produces financial staterments available for
public use,

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023

Cartain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpretationrs have
been published that are not mandatory for 21 December 2023 reporting pereds and have not been
early adopted by the Company. These standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected to
have a material impact on the entity in the curent or future reporting pericds and on foreseeable
future ransactions.

16. Subsequent Events

In Decamber 2023, the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of LIES AG and
Credit Suisse AG, and both enfities entered into a definitve merger agreement. The merger is
complated on 31 May 20024

Effective 1 March 2024, the name of Credit Suisse Management (Caymar) Limited has been
changed to UBS Management (Cayman) Limitad.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approvad for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 14
June 2034,

17
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KPMG LLP

P.O. Box493

SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman lIslands

Tel +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345 949 7164
Web www.kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of AUD Short Term Bond Fund (the "Series Trust"), a Series Trust
of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Ill (formerly Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Ill) (the "Trust"), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at August 31, 2024, the statements of comprehensive income,

changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at August 31, 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) ("IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
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opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

December 10, 2024
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (formerly known as Credit Suisse Management
(Cayman) Limited) (the” Company”), which are set out on pages 4 to 17, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory

information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such interna control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materid if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

194/195



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(formerly known as Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2024
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